

CHAPTER 175, Laws of 1979

AN ACT to repeal, renumber, renumber and amend, amend, reenact and reenact and amend various provisions of the statutes and session laws for the purpose of correcting errors, supplying omissions, clarifying language, correcting titles of officers, correcting and clarifying references, renumbering for better location and arrangement, eliminating duplications and unnecessary provisions, reconciling conflicts and repelling unintended repeals (Revisor's Correction Bill).

The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:

SECTION 1. 13.81 (2) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 34, laws of 1979, is amended by substituting "requests" for "request".

SECTION 2. 16.421 (1) of the statutes is amended by substituting periods for the semicolons following pars. (a) and (b) and by substituting a colon for the semicolon following par. (c) (intro.).

SECTION 3. 16.62 (2) of the statutes is amended by deleting the reference to section "20.505 (1) (ka)", inserted by chapter 34, laws of 1979, section 2102 (1) (b). The reference to section "20.505 (1) (kg)", inserted by chapter 34, laws of 1979, section 2102 (1) (c), stands.

SECTION 4. 17.21 (2) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 5. 20.235 (4) (title) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 6. The amendment of 20.435 (9) (c) of the statutes by chapter 32, laws of 1979, was not repealed by chapter 34, laws of 1979. Both amendments stand.

SECTION 7. The amendment of 20.505 (3) (b) of the statutes, as renumbered, by chapter 32, laws of 1979, was not repealed by chapter 34, laws of 1979. Both amendments stand.

SECTION 8. 20.575 (1) (ga) of the statutes, as created by chapter 34, laws of 1979, is amended by substituting "secretary of state" for "secretary of the state".

SECTION 9. 22.13 (3) (c) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 10. 23.62 (1) of the statutes is amended by substituting "municipal judge" for "municipal justice".

SECTION 11. 23.65 (3) of the statutes is amended by substituting "circuit judge" for "county judge".

SECTION 12. Chapter 24 (title) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 34, laws of 1979, is amended to read:

CHAPTER 24

~~PUBLIC LANDS AND ENTRY
AND SALE OF PUBLIC LANDS~~

SECTION 13. 27.01 (7) (p) of the statutes, as renumbered by chapter 34, laws of 1979, is amended by substituting "The state park in Marinette county" for "The state park, in Marinette county".

SECTION 14. 29.642 (1) (b) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 34, laws of 1979, is amended, effective January 1, 1980, by substituting "equal to 75%" for "equal to the 75%".

SECTION 15. 29.99 (7) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 34, laws of 1979, is amended, effective January 1, 1980, to read:

29.99 (7) Any violation of s. 29.33 or any department order regulating commercial fishing in outlying waters, by a forfeiture of not more than \$500 and, in addition, by the payment of a natural resources assessment equal to 75 % of the amount of the violation of the forfeiture.

SECTION 16. 29.998 (1) (c) of the statutes, as created by chapter 34, laws of 1979, is amended effective January 1, 1980, by substituting "natural resources restitution payment" for "natural restitution payment".

SECTION 17. 35.01 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

35.01 (3) Class 3 — All book printing required for state agencies, not otherwise classified, except university press publications and technical or semitechnical journals of the university of Wisconsin system, the Wisconsin magazine of history and hard bound books of the historical society.

SECTION 18. 48.745 (2) of the statutes is reenacted as shown in the 1977 statutes.

SECTION 19. 50.09 (6) (b) of the statutes is amended by deleting the words "of the statutes" in 2 places.

SECTION 20. 50.33 (1) (a) of the statutes, as shown in the 1977 statutes, is amended by substituting "disability" for "deformity".

SECTION 21. 51.15 (7) of the statutes is amended to read:

51.15 (7) INTERCOUNTY AGREEMENTS. Counties may enter into contracts whereby one county agrees to conduct commitment hearings for individuals who are detained in that county but who are taken into custody under this section in another county. Such contracts shall include provisions for reimbursement to the county of detention for all reasonable direct and auxiliary costs of commitment proceedings conducted under this section and s. 51.20 by the county of detention concerning individuals taken into custody in the other county and shall include provisions to cover the cost of any voluntary or involuntary services provided under this chapter to the subject individual as a result of proceedings or conditional suspension of proceedings resulting from the notification of detention. Where there is such a contract binding the county where the individual is taken into custody and the county where the individual is detained, the statements ~~and notification~~ of detention specified in ~~par. (a) subs. (4) and (5) and the notification specified in sub. (4)~~ shall be filed with the court having probate jurisdiction in the county of detention, unless the subject individual requests that the proceedings be held in the county in which the individual is taken into custody.

SECTION 22. The amendment of 51.37 (5) (b) of the statutes by chapter 32, laws of 1979, is repealed and 51.37 (5) (b) of the statutes, as it appears in the 1977 statutes, is amended by substituting "alternative to this" for "alternative [to] this".

SECTION 23. 59.07 (13) (a) (last sent.) of the statutes is amended by substituting "which a courthouse" for "which courthouse".

SECTION 24. 59.964 (2) (e) of the statutes is amended by substituting "ss. 62.60 to 62.67" for "chapter 608, laws of 1913".

SECTION 25. 66.945 (14) (a) of the statutes is amended to substitute "annually on or before October 1" for "annually on or before October 1 of each year".

SECTION 26. 69.23 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

69.23 (4) Nothing in this subchapter may be construed to permit disclosure of information contained in the "confidential information for medical and health use only" section of the birth certificate to any person other than to the subject of that information or his or her authorized guardian or to the parent if the subject is a minor, unless specifically authorized by the state registrar for statistical, research or public health purposes or un-

less ordered by a county circuit judge or judge of the ~~juvenile court~~ assigned to exercise jurisdiction under ch. 48.

SECTION 27. 144.31 (1) (i) (title) of the statutes, as renumbered from 144.422 (title) by chapter 34, laws of 1979, is repealed.

SECTION 28. 144.36 (title) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 29. Chapter 156 of the statutes, except 156.01 (1), is renumbered chapter 445.

SECTION 30. 156.01 (1) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 31. Chapter 158 (exc. 158.01 (3n)) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 13, laws of 1979, is renumbered chapter 457.

SECTION 32. 158.01 (3n) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 33. Chapter 159 (exc. 159.01 (9a)) of the statutes is renumbered chapter 458.

SECTION 34. 159.01 (9a) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 35. 447.05 (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

447.05 (title) License; renewal.

SECTION 36. 458.05 of the statutes, as renumbered by this act, is amended by substituting "administrator of the division of personnel in the department of employment relations" for "director of personnel".

SECTION 37. Chapter 499 of the statutes, as affected by chapter 34, laws of 1979, is renumbered chapter 232.

SECTION 38. 632.89 (2) (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

632.89 (2) (title) **REQUIRED COVERAGE FOR ALL INSURERS.**

SECTION 39. 706.10 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

706.10 (1) The several terms and forms of conveyance authorized by law or in common use in this state ~~at the effective date of this chapter on July 1, 1971,~~ shall have the same operation and effect under this chapter as formerly, except as this chapter may expressly provide to the contrary; but this section shall not preclude the adoption or use of other, different or more concise forms which conform to the requirements of this chapter.

SECTION 40. 753.061 of the statutes is amended to read:

753.061 Court; branch; judge. In each judicial circuit, each judgeship shall be given a branch number. ~~Except as provided in s. 751.239 (3) (a), each such~~ Each branch constitutes a circuit court with all the powers and jurisdiction possessed by circuit courts in circuits having one judge only, and may be designated in all papers and proceedings either by its respective number or by the name of its presiding judge.

SECTION 41. 767.37 (1) (b) of the statutes, as renumbered by chapter 32, laws of 1979, section 50, is repealed.

SECTION 42. 806.04 (5) of the statutes is amended by substituting the references to subsections "(2), (3), (3m) and (4)" for subsections "(2), (3) and (4)".

SECTION 43. 880.15 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

880.15 (2) **BOND OF TEMPORARY GUARDIAN.** Every ~~such~~ temporary guardian appointed under sub. (1) shall before entering upon the duties of his or her trust give bond to the judge of the county circuit court in such sum and with such sureties as the court ~~may designate and approve~~ designates and approves.

SECTION 44. 940.225 (5) (b) of the statutes is amended by substituting "s. 940.19 (1)" for "s. 940.20".

SECTION 45. 946.61 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended by substituting "authorized by statute" for "authorized by state".

SECTION 46. Chapter 333, laws of 1973, section 196c, is renumbered 46.03 (30) of the statutes and amended to read:

46.03 (30) PRIMARY PSYCHIATRIC CARE CONTRACTS. (a) To provide for an orderly reduction of state institutional primary psychiatric services the department of health and social services may approve the institutes entering into contracts with section s. 51.42 boards for providing primary psychiatric care. If excess capacity exists at state operated mental health institutes, the department shall explore whether such excess facilities may be sold or leased to a section s. 51.42 board.

(b) No contract may be approved for a period of time greater than one year, and no contract shall be approved for care to be provided after June 30, 1975, except as provided in subsection (3) under par. (c).

(c) The counties where the mental health institutes are located may contract with the institutes for primary psychiatric care on an ongoing basis, which contracts shall be approved by the department and shall be renewed annually.

SECTION 47. Chapter 29, laws of 1977, section 1625n (title) is repealed.

SECTION 48. Chapter 29, laws of 1977, section 1625n, is renumbered 46.037 (3) of the statutes and amended to read:

46.037 (3) The department of health and social services shall include the following provisions in the rules of allowable costs established under this section 46.037 of the statutes:

(a) Allowable costs for salaries shall be established by determining the number of allowable positions for each institution and the salaries for comparable state positions and shall equal the sum of the salaries of the comparable positions.

(b) Allowable administrative costs may not be determined on an individual basis but shall equal a uniform fixed percentage of total allowable costs up to a maximum per capita amount as determined by the department.

(c) Profit shall be calculated according to ~~the method specified in section s. 49.45 (6m) of the statutes.~~

SECTION 49. Chapter 196, laws of 1977, section 129 (4q) is amended by substituting the reference to section "16.03 (6), 1975 stats." for the reference to section "16.03 (3), 1975 stats."

SECTION 50. **Word changes.** Wherever the term "county court" appears in the following sections of the statutes, the term "circuit court" is substituted: 74.11 (5), 88.29 (5), 157.125, 345.20 (2) (a), 701.19 (4) (intro.), 800.04 (1) (d), as renumbered by chapter 32, laws of 1979, section 68 and 801.58 (6) (b).

SECTION 51. **Reference changes.** Wherever the reference to "sub. (1)" appears in the following sections of the statutes, the reference to "par. (a)" is substituted: 61.46 (3) (am), 62.12 (4m) (am) and 70.62 (4) (am).

SECTION 52. **Program responsibility citations.** (1) HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. In the list of program responsibility citations enumerated for the department of health and social services under section 15.191 (intro.) of the statutes, reference to chapter "159" is deleted and reference to chapter "458" is inserted.

(2) BARBERS EXAMINING BOARD. In the list of program responsibility citations enumerated for the barbers examining board under section 15.401 (15) of the statutes, reference to chapter "158" is deleted and reference to chapter "457" is inserted.

(3) **COSMETOLOGY EXAMINING BOARD.** In the list of program responsibility citations enumerated for the cosmetology examining board under section 15.401 (16) of the statutes, reference to chapter "159" is deleted and reference to chapter "458" is inserted.

(4) **FUNERAL DIRECTORS AND EMBALMERS EXAMINING BOARD.** In the list of program responsibility citations enumerated for the funeral directors and embalmers examining board under section 15.401 (17) of the statutes, reference to chapter "156" is deleted and reference to chapter "445" is inserted.

(5) **PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION.** In the list of program responsibility citations enumerated for the public service commission under section 15.791 of the statutes, reference to sections "59.968 (4)" and "499.11" are deleted and reference to section "232.11" is inserted.

(6) **BOARD OF VOCATIONAL, TECHNICAL AND ADULT EDUCATION.** In the list of program responsibility citations enumerated for the board of vocational, technical and adult education under section 15.941 (intro.) of the statutes, reference to sections "158.03 (4)" and "159.08 (10)" are deleted and reference to sections "457.03 (4)" and "458.08 (10)" are inserted.

SECTION 53. Cross-reference changes. In the sections of the statutes listed in Column A, the cross references shown in Column B are changed to the cross references shown in Column C:

(1) **GENERAL CHANGES.**

A	B	C
Statute Sections	Old Cross References	New Cross References
13.685 (7)	15.04 (4)	15.04 (1)(d)
15.671	21.49 (2)(b) 2	21.49 (1)(b) 2
17.21 (6)	subs. (1) and (2)	sub. (1)
23.77 (1)(a)	255.096 (3)(b)	756.096 (3)(b)
25.50 (3)(b)	70.996 (1)	70.996 (1m)
51.20 (16)(d)	sub. (14)(g)	sub. (13)(g)
70.113 (2)(a) as purported to be affected by ch. 34, laws of 1979	20.370 (1)(dn) or (vc)	20.370 (4)(ea) or (ea)
70.395 (2)(d) 1	ss. 70.395 (2)(g) and 70.397	par. (g) and s. 70.396
80.48 (3)	255.08	756.08
85.10 (3)	16.695 (2)	16.965 (2)
101.655 (7)	15.04 (4)	15.04 (1)(d)
144.60 (3), as purported to be affected by ch. 34, laws of 1979	144.43 (1m)	144.435 (1m)
215.17 (2)	215.14 (6)	215.14 (4)
230.215 (4)	15.04 (4)	15.04 (1)(d)
757.19 (5)	251.182	751.03
765.001 (title), as renumbered	245 to 248	765 to 768
767.37 (1)(a), as renumbered	295.02	785.02
799.01 (2), as renumbered and amended by chapter 32, laws of 1979	ch. 788	ch. 778
801.58 (2)	802.10 (1)	802.10
809.40 (2)	801.01 to 801.25 and 801.50 to 801.85	809.01 to 809.25 and 809.50 to 809.85
977.07 (2)	256.66	757.66

(2) **RENUMBERING OF CHAPTERS 156, 158, 159 AND 499 TO CHAPTERS 445, 457, 458 AND 232.**

A	B	C
Statute Sections	Old Cross References	New Cross References
20.165 (2)(g)	chs. 156, 158, 159 and 440 to 459	chs. 440 to 459
20.398 (1)(a)	ch. 499	ch. 232
25.50 (1)(d)	499.02 (1)	232.02 (1)
32.01 (1)	ch. 499	ch. 232
32.02 (14)	ch. 499	ch. 232
32.03 (4)	499.01 (6)	232.01 (6)
32.07 (2)	ch. 499	ch. 232
59.375	156.01	445.01
69.37	156.16	445.16
69.45 (1)	156.16	445.16

CHAPTER 175

906

155.01 (1)	ch. 156	ch. 445
155.06 (7m)	ch. 156	ch. 445
186.01 (7)(b), as created by chapter 34, laws of 1979	subd. 1. a. subds. 1. b. and c.	par. (a) 1. a. par. (a) 1. b. and c.
232.01 (10), as renumbered	499.16 (7)	232.16 (7)
232.07 (4), as renumbered	499.02 (3)	232.02 (3)
232.07 (13), as renumbered	499.25	232.25
232.07 (17), as renumbered	499.16	232.16
232.073, as renumbered	499.12	232.12
232.085, as renumbered	499.10	232.10
232.11 (2), as renumbered	499.10	232.10
232.19, as renumbered	499.07 (27)	232.07 (27)
232.27 (8), as renumbered	499.36	232.36
232.33 (intro.), as renumbered	499.11	232.11
232.34 (1), as renumbered	499.10 (1)(a)	232.10 (1)(a)
232.34 (2), as renumbered	499.10 (1)(b)	232.10 (1)(b)
232.34 (3), as renumbered	499.10 (1)	232.10 (1)
232.37, as renumbered	499.10 (1)(a) or (b) 499.36	232.10 (1)(a) or (b) 232.36
232.38, as renumbered	499.35, 499.36 and 499.37	232.35 to 232.37
440.01 (1) (intro.), as renumbered	chs. 156, 158, 159 and 440 to 459	chs. 440 to 459
440.05 (intro.)	chs. 156, 158, 159 and 440 to 459	chs. 440 to 459
440.06	chs. 156, 158, 159 and 440 to 459	chs. 440 to 459
440.09	chs. 156, 158, 159 and 440 to 459	chs. 440 to 459
445.01 (6), as renumbered	ss. 156.01 to 156.16	this chapter
445.01 (7), as renumbered	ss. 156.01 to 156.16	this chapter
445.045 (1)(f), as renumbered	156.095	445.095
445.045 (1)(g), as renumbered	156.04 and 156.05	445.04 and 445.05
445.095 (1)(b), as renumbered	ss. 156.01 to 156.16	this chapter
445.095 (4), as renumbered	ss. 156.01 to 156.16	this chapter
445.10 (2), as renumbered	ss. 156.01 to 156.16	this chapter
457.01 (14)(f), as renumbered	ch. 159	ch. 458
457.04 (5)(d), as renumbered	158.14	457.14
457.04 (5)(e), as renumbered	159.01 (3)	458.01 (3)
457.10 (1), as renumbered	158.09 (5)	457.09 (5)
457.10 (3), as renumbered	158.11 (1)(b)	457.11 (1)(b)
458.01 (9), as renumbered	159.02	458.02
458.08 (4)(a), as renumbered	159.02 159.12	458.02 458.12
458.09 (4), as renumbered	159.14	458.14
458.12 (2), as renumbered	159.08 (2)(b)	458.08 (2)(b)
458.16, as renumbered	section 159.15	s. 458.15
701.12 (1)	156.125 (1)	445.125 (1)